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The purpose of this Amendment is to:
A) Respond to questions received for the RFP

B) Update the RFP document – See replacement pages.  
A)
EDRM OFFICIAL QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

All questions have been left in their original form.

Question 81: “Do the incumbent employees have HMO or PPO plans?”
Answer 81:  This question can not be answered, as the data is considered proprietary/sensitive to the incumbent.  In addition, each offeror is required to propose their own benefits packages in response to this RFP.   
Question 82:  “Has consideration been given to making this procurement a Hubzone competition?”

Answer 82:   As a result of the Government’s acquisition planning and market research, an 8(a) set aside was determined to be the most appropriate procurement approach for this effort.

Question 83:  “Many of the incumbent employees have been working on this contract for a number of years. Can we get the pay range and classification for the incumbent employees?”
Answer 83:  Pay rates for the incumbent will not be provided because rates are considered proprietary/sensitive company data.  Skill classifications for the EDRM procurement have been identified in the RFP.  Specific rates by skill are to be established and proposed by each offeror. 
Question 84a:  “DRD#3 (page J-15), Electronic NF533 Requirement  

a.
Does the reference to SAP 2 on page J-20 implies that EDRM contractor will use a SAP 2 based Financial System in generating and delivering the NF533s?”  

Answer 84a:  No.  SAP 2 refers to the Center abbreviations listed on Page J-20.  The abbreviation for Johnson Space Center is listed incorrectly and the abbreviation is being changed from JO to JS.  There is no “SAP 2 based Financial System”.  The flat file should be named and saved in the format cited in DRD 3.  The file name will begin with “JS”.

Question 84b:  “If so, it is quite likely that the EDRM Contractor will use the SAP 2 based Financial System in generating and delivering the Electronic NF533 FLAT Files, as specified on pages J-15 and J-16, and J-21 through J-29.  This implies that the SAP 2 system has the ultimate control on the FORMAT of the FLAT File generated by it.  The EDRM Contractor might not have any control on the actual format of the electronic NF533 (flat) files generated by the SAP 2 bases system.  Is it OK to assume that the EDRM Contractor can use the electronic NF533 flat file format as a reference to quality assure the format that is generated by the SAP 2 based system and the values filled in various formatted fields before delivering to the TMRs?  Does the EDRM Contractor has any responsibility for fixing (maintenance programming) the flat file format (position and size) if its ever in error (generated incorrectly by the SAP 2 system)?”

Answer 84b:  As noted in the previous question and answer, there is no SAP 2 base Financial System.  Each contractor is required to use their own accounting system, or some other external system that is not provided by the Government, to generate the required flat file.  Whatever system is used, it MUST be in the same format as that laid out in the flat file format document.  If the Government discovers errors when posting the file to SAP due to issues in the format, the contractor will be asked to clear the errors so that the Government does not inadvertently change any reported data from the contractor by making changes to the file.  The electronic process described in DRD 3 is the same process currently being used for those choosing to use electronic processes.  

Question 85:  “What applicability do the EA42-WI-001 and 002 DCE Team Process Procedures and Work Instruction have to the Task Order Sub Level 5?”

Answer 85:  The EA42-WI-001 and 002 DCE Team Process Procedures and Work Instructions provide information regarding the roles of subsystem managers.  The information is provided as background information because the personnel performing the tasks under sub level 5 may be providing resource management assistance to subsystem managers.   

Question 86:  “On Page L-28, paragraph starting with, "Cognizant Audit Office Template ...."  Directs that this template "be delivered with the Past Performance Volume."   There is no Past Performance Volume requested in this RFP.  What Volume should this template be submitted to the government?”

 

Answer 86:  The Cognizant Audit Office Template (CAOT) should be submitted as part of Cost Volume III of the offeror’s proposal.  See replacement page L-28, in this Amendment, last paragraph. 
Question 87:  “On Page L-13, Paragraph Starting with, "The offeror shall provide complete ...."  Directs that, "The data is required at the third Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) level."  The SOW in this RFP only goes down to a second level (3.1 and 3.2).  What level of the WBS does the complete schedule of proposed labor belong?  How does this relate to the Independent Government Estimate?   If the contract does not deviate from the IGE is the resource loading on the WBS required?   Is a WBS required?  Please clarify.”

 

Answer 87:  Page L-13, Provision L-13, INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF COST PROPOSAL, fifth paragraph, last sentence is changed to: “The data is required at the second Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) level.”  Note that the IGE is the Government’s best estimate of the requirements based on the SOW, and is provided for informational purposes only.  Each offeror is encouraged to propose a WBS and costs (not the IGE) as deemed appropriate to fulfill the requirements of the contract.  However, resource loading is required down to the second WBS level as related to the SOW.  Yes, the WBS is required as specified above in this answer.  
Question 88:  “Regarding the Past Performance Questionaires, the "return" date on RFP page L-34 is blank.  Please ensure that the return date to Mr. Gips is sufficient to allow the bidders time to distribute the forms to our customers, have them completed, and then returned to NASA.”
Answer 88:  The Past Performance Questionnaires are due on or before the proposal due date of April 17, 2006, on or before 1:30 PM Central Standard Time.  

Question 89:  “When will the answers to the questions be posted?”
Answer 89:  Responses to questions were posted in Amendment 01 on 3/29/06.  The remaining answers to questions will be posted with Amendment 04.    

Question 90:  “Will the government extend the due date of the proposal?”
Answer 90:  The Government extended the due date for proposals to on or before 1:30 p.m., Central Standard Time on April 17, 2006 in Amendment 03.  
Question 91:  “Page l-10, Paragraph F. Phase-In Plan, specifically identifies NAS9-02031 as the only contract from which contract activities will be transitioned.  Is the task order for EG and EG covered under NAS9-02031?  If not are these new positions within these divisions?  Are there any other contracts from which activities will be transitioned?”
Answer 91:  No tasks are moving from any other existing contract, except NAS9-02031, to the EDRM effort.   
Question 92:  “The government today issured nine pages of questions and answers and a completely new RFP with change bars.  Will the government allow a few days for the proposers to review the released answers and changes to the RFP and extend the due date by 5 days.  The government has provide no time for the offeror to incorporate the Amendment 1 changes.  To make the April 3, dead line we have started production of our porposal and it is unlikely that we will be able to incorporate the governments clarifications and changes into our response. We strongly urge the government to extent the proposal due date by 5 days.” 

Answer 92:  Please see the response to Question 90 in that an extension was given as part of Amendment 3
Question 93:  “Answer to question 73 in Amendment 01 states,"The page limitation for the Management Plan has been raised to 40 pages."

“The management plan did not have a page limint.  Is this answer directed to the Management Volume?  If so, the Section L in Amendment 1 does not reflect any changes to the pages limitations.  Can the government please clarify?”  

“Can the government clarify by Thurday noon so that contractors can prepare their responses in a timely manner and not be pentalized if the submitted managment volume is 40 pages.”  

Answer 93:  The management plan was incorrect.  The page limitation for the Management Volume is 40 pages.  Page L-3 has been corrected and is submitted as part of Amendment 04.

Question 94:  “As we read through Amendment 01, the following items surfaced.  We could use your help to better understand the RFP’s requirements.

1. Answer 73 states that “Management Plan” page limitation has been raised to 40 pages.  We are confused since the “Program Management Plan” never had a page count to begin with.  If the increased page count is intended to apply to the management portion of the proposal, the amended RFP page L-3 still has the Management Proposal page limit at 20.  Please clarify. 

2. The answers from Amendment 01 are unclear as to how many CD copies of the proposal should be submitted with the physical copy.  Answer 39 requires one CD.  Answer 40 requires four CDs.  Answer 41 is internally inconsistent with the phrase “One (4) CD-ROM”.  The amended Sections L.9 and L.10 each require only one CD copy to be submitted.  Please definitively answer how many CD copies of the proposal are required to be submitted with the physical copy of the proposal. 


3. Past solicitations issued by NASA/Johnson Space Center have required that only a copy of the Cost Volume should be submitted to the Defense Contract Auditing Agency (DCAA).  Answer 63 requires that one copy (physical and CD) of the entire proposal (all Volumes including Technical, Management, and Cost) should be sent to our local DCAA office.  This seems inconsistent with past solicitations.  Please verify whether or not the DCAA should receive a full copy (All three volumes) of the submitted proposal (both physical and CD) or just a copy (physical and CD) of the Cost Volume. 

4. The language in Answer 79 implies that an Amendment 02 will be issued that changes the provisions of Section L.9 which stipulate the numbers of electronic and physical copies of the proposal that must be delivered.  Please advise if another Amendment is still to come that will modify the requirements of Section L.9. 

5. Change bars were present in the revised RFP; however, the copy released did not show “strike-outs and underlines”.  Is a file containing this traditional style of RFP revision available?  Such a copy of the revision would alleviate the labor intensive visual comparison to identify changes between the originally released RFP and the amended RFP currently necessitated by the absence of “strike outs and underlines” in the amended text.

Given the limited resources our 8(a) small business can bring to bear on this proposal effort, {name withheld}submittal would benefit from a few extra days to react to the answers published yesterday and the requested clarifications listed above.  Can you extend the due date for submittal by at least 3 days?”
Answer 94:  The due date for the proposal has been extended to April 17, 2006 on or before 1:30 p.m. Central Standard Time 
For part 1 of this question, please see the answer to Question 93.  

For part 2 of this question, answers 39, 40, and 41, as well as Provisions L.9 and L.10 should read as follows, with regard to the number of CDs to be submitted;  four (4) CDs for each of Volumes I, II, and III.  L-10 of the RFP has been corrected with this amendment.   
For part 3 of this question, the following clarification to the answer for question 63 of Amendment 01 is provided:   Submit ONE (1) hardcopy and ONE (1) CD ROM of only Volume III, Cost Proposal, to the cognizant DCAA office.   
For part 4 of this question, Amendment 04 provides a complete revision to provision L.9 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS HAND DELIVERY.  

The answer to part 5 of this question is no, a copy with strikeouts and underlines will not be provided as the bar marks along with the previous electronic postings provide the trace of changes made to the RFP.   
Question 95:  “The value characteristics VC-2 and VC-4 apply to both the technical and management volumes.  Can you update section L on page L-11 to have VC-2 apply to the management volume also?  As well have VC-4 apply to the technical volume?”
Answer 95:  The intent of Section L, Provision L-11, COMBINATION OF THE LOWEST PRICED TECHNICALLY ACCEPTABLE AND TRADE-OFF OF OTHER NON-COST RELATED FACTORS AND COST OR PRICE PROPOSAL INSTRUCITONS paragraphs 4a and 4b is to provide guidance as to where an offeror shall address the VCs.  Provision L-11 has now been amended to reflect that (VC-2) Innovation and (VC-4) Experience in Resource Management shall be addressed in Volume I, Technical Proposal, and Volume II, Management Proposal.  If a VC is not applicable to Volume II, or Volume II, of the offeror’s proposal, the offeror shall state so.  
Question 96:  “Could you please clarify the construct of the "MOdel Contract"?  Does this inclue completed Form 33 Section B and Section H only?  Section K is submitted Separately.”

“Or, should the Offeror complete Form 33 and Sections B through M of the RFP, as necessary, and submit 3 hard copies and one CD of the whole RFP document (Form 33 and Sections B-M)? This includes Section K again!”

Answer 96:  The model contract consists of the SF33, and Sections A through J.  Sections A through J are the contractual terms and conditions.  The offeror needs to fill out the SF33 and Sections A through J, where appropriate, with data that is consistent with the offeror’s proposal.  The offeror should return 3 hard copies of the model contract, with original signatures on the SF33s.  The CD should contain the completed electronic copy of the model contract, which includes the SF33 and Sections A through J.  
Section K is to be filled out and submitted with the offerors proposal, but not as part of the model contract.  

The terms “model contract” and “completed contract” are used interchangeably.  


B)      CHANGES TO THE EDRM REF:

CHANGES HAVE BEEN BAR-MARKED IN THE RIGHT OR LEFT MARGINS, AS SHOWN IN THE FOLLOWING PAGES.  
Proposal Volumes                                   Page Limit 

Volume I:   Technical Proposal

20 pages 
Volume II:  Management Proposal
40 page limit 
[Not Including Program Management Plan (required in DRD 1), Safety & Health Plan, Phase-in-Plan, Past Performance, Key Personnel Resume and Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan] 

Volume III: Cost Proposal 


No page limit 

(b) A page is defined as one side of a sheet, 8 1/2" x 11", with at least one inch margins on all sides, using not smaller than 12 point type. Foldouts count as an equivalent number of 8 1/2" x 11" pages. The metric standard format most closely approximating the described standard 8 1/2" x 11" size may also be used. 

(c) Title pages and tables of contents are excluded from the page counts specified in paragraph (a) of this provision. In addition, the Cost section of your proposal is not page limited. However, this section is to be strictly limited to cost and price information. Information that can be construed as belonging in one of the other sections of the proposal will be so construed and counted against that section's page limitation. 

(d) If final revisions are requested, separate page limitations will be specified in the Government's request for that submission. 

(e) Pages submitted in excess of the limitations specified in this provision will not be evaluated by the Government and will be returned to the offeror. 

(End of Provision) 


L.6
COMMUNICATIONS REGARDING THIS SOLICITATION (JSC PROCUREMENT INSTRUCTIONS 52.215-105) (DEC 1999) 

Any communications in reference to this solicitation shall cite the solicitation number and be directed to the following Government representative: 

Name:   
Sharyn Lee Willis

Address:
Johnson Space Center

Attn: Sharyn Lee Willis/BH3

2101 NASA Parkway

Houston, TX   77058-3696

E-mail:  
http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/edrm/
FAX:  

281-483-6336
Phone:  
281-483-5863 (collect calls will not be accepted) 
QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS SOLICITATION MUST BE PRESENTED IN WRITING and should be submitted to the above address or e-mail address within 10 days of the solicitation

issue date (questions due on or before March 13, 2006) in order that answers may be obtained and disseminated in a timely manner, since it is not expected that a proposal submission date can be extended.  Oral questions will not be answered due to the possibility of misunderstanding or misinterpretation.  Questions shall not be directed to the technical activity personnel. 

Note:  Any written communications should include the mail code on the envelope to expedite processing. 

(End of Provision) 

L.7
SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS BY COMMERCIAL CARRIER 

(JSC PROCUREMENT INSTRUCTIONS 52.215-108) (SEPT 1988) 

Offerors are advised that proposals sent to JSC by commercial carrier (e.g., Federal Express, Purolator, United Parcel Service) are NOT delivered directly to the place designated in the solicitation for submission of proposals.  All parcels and packages delivered by commercial carriers are routed to the Transportation Branch in Building 421 at JSC.  If such a parcel contains on its visible, exterior surface the information required by the "Submission of Offers" provision of this solicitation (i.e., the time specified for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of the offeror), it will be handled on an expedited basis by the Transportation Branch; however, depending on when it is received by the Transportation Branch, it MAY OR MAY NOT be received by the office designated for receipt of proposals by the required time.  Transportation Branch personnel will NOT open the commercial carrier's package to determine its contents. 

In view of the above, offerors who choose to submit proposals by a commercial carrier should, if they want to have reasonable assurance that their proposals will be received in a timely manner at the place designated in the solicitation, do the following: 
(a) Make sure that the carrier puts the information required by the "Submission of Offers" provision ON THE EXTERIOR OF THE ENVELOPE IN WHICH HE/SHE DELIVERS THE PARCEL, and 

(b) Get the proposal to the carrier in time for it to be delivered to the Transportation Branch at JSC ON THE DAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME DESIGNATED FOR RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS. 

While taking the above steps should normally result in the timely receipt of proposals, offerors are reminded that proposals may be sent by U.S. Mail, and that clear and precise rules regarding the consideration of late submissions are set forth in the solicitation provision titled "LATE SUBMISSIONS, MODIFICATIONS, AND WITH-DRAWALS OF PROPOSALS."  Offerors are further reminded that it is their responsibility to get their proposals to the designated place on time.  Proposals which are sent by commercial carrier are considered to be handcarried, and, if they are received late at the place designated in the solicitation, they will only be considered if it is shown that the sole or paramount cause for the late receipt was some Government impropriety. 

(End of Provision) 


L.8

SAFETY AND HEALTH PLAN (NFS 1852.223-73) (NOV 2004)
  (a) The offeror shall submit a detailed safety and occupational health plan as part of its proposal

(see NPR 8715.3, NASA Safety Manual, Appendices).  The plan shall include a detailed discussion of the policies, procedures, and techniques that will be used to ensure the safety and occupational health of Contractor employees and to ensure the safety of all working conditions throughout the performance of the contract.  

  (b) When applicable, the plan shall address the policies, procedures, and techniques that will be used to ensure the safety and occupational health of the public, astronauts and pilots, the NASA workforce (including Contractor employees working on NASA contracts), and high-value equipment and property.

  (c) The plan shall similarly address subcontractor employee safety and occupational health for those proposed subcontracts that contain one or more of the following conditions:  


(1) The work will be conducted completely or partly on premises owned or controlled by the 

government.


(2) The work includes construction, alteration, or repair of facilities in excess of the 

simplified acquisition threshold.


(3) The work, regardless of place of performance, involves hazards that could endanger the 

public, astronauts and pilots, the NASA workforce (including Contractor employees working on NASA contracts), or high value equipment or property, and the hazards are not adequately addressed by Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) or Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations (if applicable).


(4) When the assessed risk and consequences of a failure to properly manage and control the 

hazards warrants use of the clause.

(d) This plan, as approved by the Contracting Officer, will be included in any resulting contract.

(End of Provision)

L.9
SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS BY HAND DELIVERY

Due to heightened security measures in force at the Johnson Space Center (JSC), and to ensure timely proposal submission, the following procedures shall be followed for proposals that are hand delivered.  Offerors shall deliver proposals to the JSC Industry Assistance Office, Building 111, Room 112 at the Johnson Space Center (JSC) 2101 NASA Parkway, Houston, TX 77058-3696 not later than 1:30 p.m. (CST) on April 17, 2006.  Each Offeror is encouraged to notify the contracting officer one day in advance of the planned proposal hand carried delivery.   

To hand deliver a proposal to JSC, offerors shall do so by first entering JSC at Gate 1 by Building 111.  Offerors are advised that entry through any other gate could result in excessive delays or searches of vehicle contents by non-Government personnel.  Anyone delivering a proposal, including 
persons having authorized access to JSC, may be subjected to searches or delays when attempting
to enter through a gate other than Gate 1.  Gate 1 can be reached by traveling east on NASA 
Parkway from Interstate Highway I-45.  Turn left into Johnson Space Center Gate 1 and then right into the Building 110/111 parking lot.  Upon entering the site, offerors will encounter a security guard posted at Gate 1.  Offerors shall advise the guard posted at Gate 1 that they are delivering a
proposal and should receive instructions to proceed to Building 111.  Enter Building 111, room 112 and inform the attendant that a proposal is being submitted.  The attendant will log in the proposal.  Since all incoming freight is screened, to avoid delays offerors are encouraged to limit vehicle contents to the proposal being delivered.

Heightened security measures at JSC may delay proposal delivery to the point of contact for proposal acceptance when offerors use commercial providers.    

These instructions for submission of proposals are designed to ensure proposal data is adequately protected against potential improper disclosure while concurrently ensuring the physical security of JSC.  The delivery process may require an hour or more for packages to be screened through security and subsequently transported and delivered to the JSC point of contact for proposal acceptance.  Any attempt by an offeror to deliver a proposal on a weekend or on a Federal holiday shall be coordinated through the contracting officer at least 48 hours prior to the planned delivery date.  When the offeror uses a commercial carrier for delivery services, the offeror shall ensure that its proposal is delivered in a manner that fully complies with the requirements of Provision L-7, SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS BY COMMERICAL CARRIER, and any other proposal applicable delivery instructions in this RFP.  Failure to comply could delay the proposal delivery or allow it to be handled by unauthorized or non-Government personnel.  Proposals that are hand delivered insure that your proposal data is not compromised.  Offerors are advised that proposals sent by commercial carrier or through the U.S. Postal Service are subject to being opened and inspected by other than government personnel.  As used herein, the term “non-Government personnel” refers to all personnel not employed directly by the US Government, and includes employees of Government contractors. To expedite delivery, each box containing proposal information shall be clearly marked with the following information:


“Proposal Data – DO NOT OPEN - SEC SENSITIVE

Submitted by [Offeror’s Identity] in response to RFP# NNJ06129010R


Box ___ of ___.


Civil Service Points of Contact (POC):
Sharyn Lee Willis            281-483-5863








James P.Gips

     281-244-7878

 (End of Provision) 

L.10 
PROPOSAL CONTENT
Offerors are requested to provide information responsive to the items set forth below.

A. Completed Contract

In order to facilitate the possibility of award without discussions, offerors shall submit three (3) signed copies and three (3) CD ROM copies of the completed Contract (including three (3) signed original SF33’s) to be fully consistent with its proposal. The completed contract shall be provided as part of the proposal, but not included in Volumes I through III.   

B. Representations and Certifications

Offers shall also submit their completed Representations and Certifications (Section K).  This material is to be provided as part of the proposal, but not included in Volumes I through III.  
C. Proposal Volumes

As detailed in the provision at L.5, entitled “Proposal Page Limitations (NFS 1852.215-81) (FEB 1998)” proposals shall be submitted in three volumes.  Offerors shall submit six (6) copies of Volumes I, II, and III, plus four (4) CD ROM copies of all volumes.  Offerors shall submit ONE (1) hard copy and ONE (1) CD ROM of Volume III, Cost Proposal to their cognizant DCAA office.  

· Technical Proposal (Instructions Located in Provision L.11)

· Management Proposal (Instructions Located in Provision L.11)

· Cost Proposal (Instructions Located in Provisions L.12 and L.13)

(End of Provision)

L.11
COMBINATION OF THE LOWEST PRICED TECHNICALLY ACCEPTABLE AND TRADE-OFF OF OTHER NON-COST RELATED FACTORS AND COST OR PRICE PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS 
This procurement shall be conducted utilizing a combination of technically acceptable baseline requirements and tradeoff of predefined qualitative (value) characteristics; Safety and Health Plan; past performance; and cost/price. Based on FAR 52.215-1(f), the Government seeks to select an offeror whose proposal represents the best value after evaluation.  The Government’s requirements are stated as a baseline requirement.  Predefined qualitative (value) characteristics beyond the baseline will serve as the discriminators among offers.  All offers will be evaluated against the specifications/statement of work included in Section C of the RFP and the qualitative characteristics.   

An initial review will be conducted to determine acceptability of the proposals.  All unacceptable proposals will be eliminated from further evaluation.  The Government has the option, depending on the specific circumstances of the offers received, to utilize one of the following methods:  (1) make selection and award without discussions.  Offerors may be contacted only for clarification   

contact (including address, telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail address, if available), what the contract was for, and status of the contract (current, terminated (if so, why), successfully completed).  Offerors with no previous Government contracts shall so state.  The offeror shall include the Past Performance information in Volume II, Management Proposal.

3.
Safety and Health Requirements 
The offeror shall submit their approach to safety and health as required by NFS 1852.223-70 and DRDs 4, 5, 6, and 7 of this Request for Proposal.  The suitability and adequacy of the offeror’s Safety and Health Plan in accordance with NFS 1852.223-73 will be included in this evaluation. 

4.  Predefined Qualitative (Value) Characteristics (VC) 

Offerors are required to meet the baseline requirements in their proposal.  Furthermore, Offerors must address the VC in their technical and management proposals.  If a VC is not applicable to the Offerors proposal, the Offeror shall state so.  Refer to Section M, Article M.2, to see how the VC’s will be evaluated.  The Offeror shall include information on the VC’s as follows:


A) Volume I:  Technical Proposal

B) Volume II:  Management Proposal


    
(VC-2) Innovation



(VC-1) Key Personnel



(VC-4) Experience in
Resource

(VC-2) Innovation




Management 



(VC-3) Past Performance








(VC-4) Experience in Resource 

                                                                                     
Management

5.  Proposal Arrangement
Volume I:  Technical Proposal

Offerors shall submit information in their proposals in response to the items set forth below.  



Location 

Title


Section L.11, 1.A
Technical Requirements



Section L.11, 4.A
Qualitative (Value) Characteristics: Volume I: Technical        

                                                   Proposal
Volume II: Management Proposal

Offerors shall submit information in their proposals in response to the items set forth below.  



Location

Title


Section J-3, DRD-1
Program Management Plan



Section J-3, DRD-8
Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan



Section L.11, 1.B
Key Personnel and Staffing Plan



Section L.11, 1.C
Total Compensation Plan



Section L.11, 1.D
Subcontracting Approach (if applicable)


L.13
INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF COST PROPOSAL

Your cost proposal shall encompass all costs associated with the requirements of the contemplated contract and shall comply with applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), NASA FAR Supplement (NFS), and governing statutory requirements.  

To ensure that the Government is able to perform a fair assessment of the proposed cost, each offeror is required to submit the following information that will allow for evaluation of resources, cost realism, completeness and reasonableness. Each cost proposal shall be suitable for evaluation and include supporting information cross-referenced to allow traceability/reconciliation to the technical/management proposal(s). These instructions apply to the prime contractor and all subcontractors with an annual estimated value that exceeds $500,000. 

All pricing and estimating techniques shall be clearly explained in detail (projections, rates, ratios, percentages, factors, etc.) and shall support the proposed costs in such a manner that audit, computation, and verification can be accomplished.  Also, any experience factors (unit prices, hours, quantities, etc.) and judgmental projections shall be explained.  All past actuals shall show the periods of time and costs in detail when used as a basis for estimating the proposed costs.  The offeror shall discuss the rationale for any escalation proposed for each cost element.  The offeror shall also include the company's escalation history for each cost element for the past 3 years.   


The offeror's proposed costs will be evaluated for cost realism to determine if the costs are realistic for the work to be performed, if the costs reflect a clear understanding of the requirements, and if the costs are consistent with the various elements of the technical proposal. 
The offeror shall provide a complete schedule of proposed labor in sufficient detail to allow analysis of labor requirements time-phased and identified by tasks or contract line items over the estimated term of the contract by Standard Labor Categories (SLC's).  SLC's are provided below to facilitate a consistent evaluation among offerors.  The data is required at the second Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) level. 
SLC's are to be used by all offerors for proposal purposes only.  The offeror should map their labor categories to the SLC's.  The offerors should provide a brief job description along with the form to allow for a NASA and Defense Contract Audit Agency audit review based on the offeror's estimating system. 
Standard Labor Categories (SLC)

A set of proposed Standard Labor Categories (SLC) applicable to this contract are provided to facilitate a consistent evaluation among Offerors.  Table L-1 addresses the recommended qualifications and experience levels of the SLC that are to be used for proposal purposes.  SLCs are intended to broadly group proposed labor into a manageable number of categories.  These guidelines may not address all the possible specific skills, or requirements that any one occupation or profession may require.  It is the Offeror’s responsibility to acquire an understanding of the complexities of the work required to successfully meet the EDRM requirements.  When describing the proposed labor necessary to accomplish the SOW, the 


Offeror’s fiscal year and anticipated contract year do not coincide; the Offeror shall complete the rate reconciliation showing how the fiscal year overhead rates result in the proposed overhead rates for each contract year.  Relative to the language included in the RFP, the Government does not require, mandate or imply that you propose indirect rate ceilings.  However, if proposed, the template includes an area for overhead ceilings. 

A few cost elements are included on the template under the column titled “Cost Elements within the Indirect Expense Pool”.  These cost element examples represent the type(s) of cost element detail for which the Government requires visibility (e.g. pension, savings plan, health/life insurance).  Offerors are required to populate this column with commensurate cost elements germane to their specific indirect cost pools.  If any example cost element(s) are not applicable to any proposed indirect cost pool, simply edit the example cost element cell to include actual cost element(s) captured in your indirect pool.

G&A Template (GAT):  The prime contractor and all major subcontractor(s) must provide their Forward Pricing Rate Agreement (FPRA) used to price G&A cost for this proposal or this template.  This template shall provide insight into the composition of the burden pool for the proposed General and Administrative (G&A) rate.  Identify the estimated G&A expense and explain the method for its calculation.  Provide G&A cost history including the actual expense pool and application base amounts for the prior three years.  If for any prior three years your company does not have actual G&A cost history, simply include a brief explanation in the GAT basis of estimate to explain the omission (e.g. “ABC Company was incorporated in the State of Texas on January, 10, 2004, accordingly no historical G&A data exists for 2003 or 2002”.).  The basis for projections of G&A shall also be provided and an explanation in support of any significant changes in either expenses or base of application that exist from one year to the next.  In the event the Offeror’s fiscal year and anticipated contract year do not coincide, the Offeror shall complete the rate reconciliation showing how the fiscal year G&A rate results in the proposed G&A rate for each contract year.  Relative to the language included in the RFP, the Government does NOT require, mandate or imply that you propose G&A rate ceilings.  However, if proposed, the template includes an area for G&A ceilings. 

A few cost elements are included on the template under the column titled “Cost Elements within the G&A Expense Pool”.  These cost element examples represent the type(s) of cost element detail for which the Government requires visibility (e.g. pension, savings plan, health/life insurance).  Offerors are required to populate this column with commensurate cost elements germane to their specific G&A cost pool.  If any example cost element(s) are not applicable to any proposed indirect cost pool, simply edit the example cost element cell to include actual cost element(s) captured in your G&A pool.

Cognizant Audit Office Template (CAOT):  This template is required for each prime contractor, teaming partner, joint venture partner, and major subcontractor that meets the major subcontractor threshold ($500,000 per year).  This template is to be delivered with the Proposal Cost Volume, Volume III.  This template is designed to capture
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